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The Company is committed to complying with the Code of Corporate Governance (“Code”) issued by the Corporate Governance
Committee in March 2001 so as to ensure greater transparency and to safeguard the interests of shareholders. This statement
highlights the main corporate governance practices that were implemented during the financial year. While efforts have been
taken to comply with the recommendations of the Code as prescribed by the Stock Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-
ST”), the Company seeks to ensure its full compliance come next financial year.

1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Role of the Board

The Board of Directors currently comprises 4 Executive Directors, and 5 Non-Executive Directors. Its primary role is to protect
and enhance long-term shareholder value. It sets the overall strategy for the Group and supervises executive management. To
fulfil this role, the Board is responsible for the overall corporate governance of the Group including setting its strategic direction,
establishing goals for management and monitoring the achievement of these goals.

Board Processes

The Board of Directors has established a few Board Committees such as the Audit Committee, Nominating Committee, and the
Remuneration Committee, to assist in carrying out its responsibilities. These committees have written mandates and operating
procedures, which are reviewed and monitored constantly. The minutes of the meeting of these committees are circulated among
the Board.

During the year, the Board held 4 meetings to review the Group’s operations, conduct strategic review of the businesses and
address other specific significant matters that arose.

The agenda for meetings is prepared in consultation with the Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (”CEO”). Agenda
and submissions are circulated in advance of the scheduled meetings.

Directors’ meeting held in FY2002

The number of meetings attended by each member of the Board during the financial year is as follows:

Name of director Board meetings attended
Dr. Allan Yap (appointed on 10 May 2002) 2
Mr. Foo Der Rong 4
Mr. Chan Yeuk Wai (appointed on 10 May 2002) 1
Mr. Richard Lui Siu Tsuen (appointed on 10 May 2002) 2
Mr. Chee Teck Kwong, Patrick 4
Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi 4
Mr. S Chandra Das 2
Mr. Gerry Lee Kian Hup (alternate to Mr. S Chandra Das) 2
Mr. Chua Keng Hiang (appointed on 27 February 2003) n.a.
Mr. Tan Ling San (resigned on 1 February 2003) 4
Mr. Chong Kar Kee (resigned on 31 August 2002) 2
Mr. Chew Tuan Gee (resigned on 31 August 2002) 2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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1.1 MATTERS REQUIRING BOARD APPROVAL

The directors have identified a few areas for which the Board has to meet for decision-making and to approve the corporate events
or actions:

• half-year and full year results announcements;

• annual report and accounts;

• declaration of interim dividends and proposal of final dividends;

• convening of shareholders’ meetings;

• corporate strategy; and

• major transactions.

1.2 TRAINING OF DIRECTORS

Our directors are provided with extensive background information about our Group’s history and business operations. The Company
also provides ongoing education on Board processes and best practices. Directors also have the opportunity to visit the Group’s
operational facilities and meet with management to gain a better understanding of the business operations.

1.3 BOARD COMPOSITION AND BALANCE

The names of the directors of the Company in office at the date of this Statement are set out in the Directors’ Report.

The composition of the Board is determined in accordance with the following principles:

• the Board should comprise 9 directors (This number may be increased where it is felt that additional expertise is required
in specific areas, or when an outstanding candidate is identified.);

• the Board should comprise at least one-third of non-executive independent directors;

• the Board should have enough directors to serve on various committees of the Board without over-burdening the directors
or making it difficult for them to fully discharge their responsibilities;

• the Board should comprise directors with a broad range of expertise both nationally and internationally; and

• directors appointed by the Board are subject to election by shareholders at the following Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
and thereafter, directors are subject to re-election according to the provision in the Articles of Association. The article states
that one-third of the directors shall retire from office by rotation with the exception of the director holding office as Managing
Director.

The Board regularly examines its size and, with a view to determining the impact of its number upon effectiveness, decides on
what it considers an appropriate size for itself. The composition of the Board is reviewed on an annual basis by a Nominating
Committee to ensure that the Board has the appropriate mix of expertise and experience. When a vacancy exists, through whatever
cause, or where it is considered that the Board would benefit from the services of a new director with particular skills and
knowledge, the Committee, in consultation with the Board, determines the selection criteria for the position based on the skills
and knowledge deemed necessary for the Board to best carry out its responsibilities. The Committee then selects candidates with
the appropriate expertise and experience. Potential candidates are identified by the Committee and the Board then appoints the
most suitable candidate who must stand for election at the next AGM of shareholders.
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1.3 BOARD COMPOSITION AND BALANCE (CONT’D)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 9 (including an alternate director) suitably qualified members:

Name of director/ Date of appointment/ Functions Directorships in other Academic and
Nature of appointment Date of last re-election listed companies professional qualifications

Dr. Allan Yap 10 May 2002 Executive Chairman Managing Director of Honorary Doctor of Laws
(Executive) Hanny Holdings Limited from University of Victoria

Executive Director of
ITC Corporation Limited
and Ananda Wing On
Travel (Holdings) Limited

Vice Chairman and
Director of China
Strategic Holdings
Limited and China
Enterprise Limited

Mr. Foo Der Rong 1 August 1990/     Managing Director &     - Bachelor of Commerce
(Executive) 11 May 2002 Chief Executive Officer from Nanyang University

of Singapore

Mr. Chan Yeuk Wai 10 May 2002 Director Chairman of Ananda -
(Executive) Wing On Travel (Holdings)

Limited

Mr. Richard Lui 10 May 2002 Director Deputy Managing Director of Member of The Chartered
Siu Tsuen Hanny Holdings Limited Institute of Management
(Executive) Accountants

Master of Business
Administration from
The University of Adelaide

 
Mr. Chee Teck Kwong, 1 August 1990/ Director, Chairman of CSC Bachelor of Law (Honours)
Patrick 16 May 2001 Chairman of Holdings Limited from University of Singapore
(Non-Executive/ Audit Committee, 
Independent) Member of Nominating

and Remuneration
Committee

Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi 13 November 1997/  Director, - Bachelor of Arts (Economics)
(Non-Executive/ 16 May 2000 Chairman of Nominating from University of Newcastle           
Independent)                 and Remuneration  

Committee, Bachelor of Engineering
Member of (Mechanical) (Honours) 
Audit Committee from University of Newcastle

Mr. S Chandra Das 29 June 1999/ Director, Chairman of Nera Bachelor of Arts (Economics)
 (Non-Executive) 11 May 2002 Member of Nominating Telecommunications (Honours) from University
           and Remuneration Limited, and Nera Electronics of Singapore

Committee Limited

Director of The Ascott
Group Limited, Capital Mall
Trust Management Limited
and Yeo Hiap Seng Limited

Mr. Chua Keng Hiang 27 February 2003 Director, Director of Jadason Member of Chartered                        
(Non-Executive/ Member of Enterprise Limited, First Association of Certified
Independent) Audit Committee Engineering Limited, Tat Seng Public Accountants, UK

 Packaging Group Limited, and
Ocean Sky International Bachelor of Accountancy 
Limited (Honours) from University

 of Singapore

Mr. Gerry Lee 29 June 1999/ Alternate Chairman of Interstates Market Bachelor of Business from
Kian Hup 11 May 2002 Director Pte Ltd RMIT University
(Alternate Director to
Mr. S Chandra Das) Director of Cheers Holdings

Pte Ltd, FairPrice Homemart
Pte Ltd, FairVision Pte Ltd and
Groceries Logistics of Singapore

Particulars of interests of directors who held office at the end of the financial year in shares in the Company and in related corporations
are set out in the Directors’ Report.
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1.4 INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has 3 independent members, representing more than one-third of the Board: Mr. Chee Teck Kwong,
Patrick, Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi, and Mr. Chua Keng Hiang. The criteria for independence is based on the definition given in the Code
issued by the Corporate Governance Committee. The Board considers an ‘independent’ director as one who has no relationship
with the Company, its related companies or its officers that could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the
exercise of the director’s independent business judgement.

1.5 CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

There is a distinctive separation of responsibilities between the Executive Chairman and the CEO, which ensures there is a balance
of power and authority at the top of the Company. The Company maintains the positions of Executive Chairman and CEO separate
and these posts are held by Dr. Allan Yap and Mr. Foo Der Rong, respectively.

The Board has delegated the daily operations of the Group to the CEO. The Executive Chairman is primarily responsible for the
effective working of the Board and exercises control over the quality, quantity and timeliness of information flow between the
management and the Board.

1.6 BOARD MEMBERSHIP

The Nominating Committee (“NC”) comprises 3 members, Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi (Chairman, and Independent Director), Mr. Chee Teck
Kwong, Patrick (Independent Director) and Mr. S Chandra Das. The NC’s functions are to develop and maintain a transparent
and formal process for the appointment of new directors, the recommendation of directors who are due for retirement by rotation
to seek re-election at general meeting, and the determination of status of independence of each director and the Board as a whole.

The role of the NC is to oversee the appointment and induction process for directors. Candidates are selected for their character,
judgement, business experience and acumen, technical expertise, and familiarity with national and international issues affecting
business. Where a director has multiple board representations, the NC will evaluate whether or not a director is able to and has
been adequately carrying out his duties as director of the Company.

In appointing director, the Board considers the range of skills and experience required in the light of:

• geographical spread and diversity of the Group’s businesses;

• the strategic direction and progress of the Group;

• the current composition of the Board; and

• the need for independence.

The Board has decided that, at each AGM, one-third of the directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. A retiring director is eligible for re-
election by the shareholders of the Company at the AGM, and prior to nominating a retiring director for re-election, the NC will
evaluate the directors’ contribution and performance taking into consideration factors such as attendance, preparedness,
participation and candour.

Meetings and attendance during the year:

Name of director Appointment Number of meetings attended
Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi (Chairman) Non-Executive/ Independent 1
Mr. Chee Teck Kwong, Patrick Non-Executive/ Independent 1
Mr. S Chandra Das Non-Executive 1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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1.7 BOARD PERFORMANCES

We believe that Board performance is ultimately reflected in the performance of the Group and the Company. The Board should
ensure compliance with applicable laws and Board members should act in good faith, with due diligence and care in the best
interests of the Group and the shareholders. In addition to these fiduciary duties, the Board is charged with two key responsibilities
of setting strategic directions and ensuring that the Group is ably led. The Board, through the delegation of its authority to the
NC, will review its Board’s composition annually to ensure that the Board has the appropriate mix of expertise and experience
to lead the Group.

The NC, in considering the re-appointment of any director, evaluates the performance of the director. The assessment parameters
includes attendance record at meetings of the Board and Board Committees, intensity of participation at meetings, the quality
of interventions and special contributions.

The financial indicators set out in the Code as guides for the evaluation of directors are in our opinion more of a measure of
management’s performance and hence, less applicable to directors. Moreover, the financial indicators provide snapshots
of the Group’s performance and do not reflect a complete measure of long-term creation of shareholders’ wealth.

1.8 ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Directors receive a regular supply of information from management about the Group so that they are equipped to play as full a
part as possible in Board meetings. Detailed Board papers are prepared for each meeting of the Board and are normally circulated
a week in advance of each meeting. The Board papers provided include background or explanatory information relating to matters
to be brought before the Board.

All directors have separate and independent access to the advice and services of the company secretary, who is responsible to
the Board for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that applicable rules and regulations are complied with.

Each director has the right to seek independent legal and other professional advice, at the Company’s expense, concerning
any aspect of the Group’s operations or undertakings in order to fulfill their duties and responsibilities as directors.

2 REMUNERATION MATTERS

The Group’s remuneration policy is to provide compensation packages at market rates which reward successful performance and
attract, retain and motivate directors and key management executives. The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) is responsible
for recommending to the Board, a framework of remuneration for the Board and key executives.

The RC comprises 3 members, Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi (Chairman, and Independent Director), Mr. Chee Teck Kwong, Patrick (Independent
Director) and Mr. S Chandra Das. The RC reviews and approves recommendations on remuneration policies and packages for
directors and senior management in the interests of improved corporate performance. The review of remuneration packages takes
into consideration the long-term interests of the Group and ensures that the interests of the directors and senior management
align with that of the shareholders. The review covers all aspects of remuneration, including but not limited to directors’ salaries,
fees, allowances, bonuses, options, profit sharing, and benefits-in-kind. The committee’s recommendations are made in consultation
with the Executive Chairman of the Board and submitted for endorsement by the entire Board.

The remuneration packages of the CEO and the Executive Directors are determined based on the framework recommended by
the RC, in consultation with the Executive Chairman of the Board, and are submitted for endorsement by the entire Board.
Remuneration for Non-Executive Directors are determined by the CEO together with the other Executive Directors, based on the
effort, time spent and responsibilities of each Non-Executive Director. The remuneration packages of Non-Executive Directors
are also submitted for endorsement by the RC and the entire Board.
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2 REMUNERATION MATTERS (CONT’D)

Meetings and attendance during the year:

Name of director Appointment Number of meetings attended
Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi (Chairman) Non-Executive/ Independent 1
Mr. Chee Teck Kwong, Patrick Non-Executive/ Independent 1
Mr. S Chandra Das Non-Executive 1

2.1 REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES RELATED TO DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2002, we have an employee who is related to the CEO. He is also the Executive Director of a subsidiary in
Malaysia. The basis of determining the remuneration of this related employee is the same as the basis of determining the
remuneration of other unrelated employees.

Summary compensation table of the executive who is related to the CEO for the financial year ended 31 December 2002:

Remuneration band Salary Bonus Directors’ fee Allowances Ex-Gratia Total
% % % and other % %

 benefits*
 %

Range S$250,001
– S$500,000 68 11 2 19 0 100

* Employer’s CPF contribution is included here.

Summary compensation table of Company’s directors receiving remuneration from the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2002:

Remuneration band Salary Bonus Directors’ fee Allowances Ex-Gratia Total
and name of director % % % and other % %

 benefits*
 %

Range S$250,000 and below
Dr. Allan Yap 63 11 26 0 0 100
Mr. Chan Yeuk Wai 59 10 24 7 0 100
Mr. Richard Lui Siu Tsuen 63 11 26 0 0 100
Mr. Chee Teck Kwong, Patrick 0 0 100 0 0 100
Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi 0 0 100 0 0 100
Mr. S Chandra Das 0 0 100 0 0 100

Range S$250,001 – S$500,000
Mr. Foo Der Rong 68 12 11 9 0 100

Range S$500,001 – S$750,000
Mr. Tan Ling San 73 12 9 6 0 100
Mr. Chong Kar Kee 40 10 2 3 45 100
Mr. Chew Tuan Gee 41 10 3 4 42 100

* Employer’s CPF contribution is included here.

25:
P r o v i s i o n s  S u p p l i e r s  C o r p o r a t i o n  L i m i t e d



3 ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

In presenting the annual financial statements and quarterly announcements to shareholders, it is the aim of the Board to provide
the shareholders with a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s and the Group’s performance, position and
prospects.

3.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE

During 2002, the Audit Committee (“AC”) had a majority of Non-Executive Independent Directors comprising Mr. Chee
Teck Kwong, Patrick (Chairman, and Independent Director), Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi (Independent Director) and Mr. Tan Ling San (former
Executive Chairman who resigned on 1 February 2003).

The AC, which is chaired by Mr. Chee Teck Kwong, Patrick , a Non-Executive Independent Director, meets from time to time with
the Group’s external and internal auditors and the executive management to review accounting, auditing and financial reporting
matters so as to provide the necessary checks and balances to ensure that an effective control environment is maintained in the
Group.

The AC also studies proposed changes in accounting policies, examines the internal audit functions and discusses the accounting
implications of major transactions. Furthermore, the AC advises the Board regarding the adequacy of the Group’s internal controls
and the contents and presentation of its interim and annual reports.

Specifically, the AC meets periodically to perform the following functions:

(a) reviewing the audit plans of our external and internal auditors;

(b) reviewing the external and internal auditors’ reports;

(c) reviewing the co-operation given by our officers to the external and internal auditors;

(d) reviewing the adequacy of the internal audit function;

(e) evaluating the effectiveness of our Group’s system of internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and risk management, by reviewing written reports from internal and external auditors, and management responses
and actions to correct any deficiencies;

(f) reviewing the financial statements of our Company and our Group before their submission to the Board of Directors;

(g) nominating external auditors for appointment or re-appointment;

(h) reviewing non-audit services provided by the external auditors to satisfy that the nature and extent of such services will
not prejudice the independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

(i) reviewing our Group’s compliance with such functions and duties as may be required under the relevant statutes or the
Listing Manual, and by such amendments made thereto from time to time; and

(j) reviewing interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual) to ensure that they are on normal
commercial terms and arms’ length basis and not prejudicial to the interests of the Company or our shareholders in any
way.

Apart from the duties listed above, our AC shall commission and review the findings of internal investigations into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity, or failure of internal controls or infringement of any Singapore and other applicable law,
rule or regulation which has or is likely to have material impact on our Company’s or our Group’s operating results and/or financial
position.

The AC is also authorised to investigate any matter within its terms of reference and has full access to and co-operation of
management and full discretion to invite any director or executive officer to attend its meetings, and reasonable resources to
enable it to discharge its functions properly. The AC meets annually with the internal auditors and the external auditors, without
the presence of the Company’s management. This is to review the adequacy of audit arrangements, with particular emphasis on
the scope and quality of their audits, and the independence and objectivity of the internal and external auditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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3.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONT’D)

Meetings and attendance during the year:

Name of director Appointment Number of meetings attended
Mr. Chee Teck Kwong, Patrick (Chairman) Non-Executive/ Independent 3
Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi Non-Executive/ Independent 3
Mr. Tan Ling San (resigned on 1 February 2003) Executive 3

Mr. Chua Keng Hiang, a Non-Executive Independent Director has been appointed to the Board and to the AC after Mr. Tan Ling
San resigned on 1 February 2003.

3.2 INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board of Directors recognises that it is responsible for the overall internal control framework, but accepts that no cost effective
internal control system will preclude all errors and irregularities, as a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The AC will:

• satisfy itself that adequate measures are in place to identify and mitigate any material business risks associated with the
Group;

• ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls, including financial, operating and
compliance controls and risk management, is conducted at least annually. Such review can be carried out by internal
auditors/external auditors;

• ensure that the internal control recommendations made by internal and external auditors have been implemented by the
management; and

• ensure the Board is in a position to comment on the adequacy of the internal controls of the Group.

3.3 INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group has an in-house internal audit function that is independent of the activities it audits. The aim of the internal audit
function is to promote internal control in the Group and to monitor the performance and effective application of internal audit
procedures. It supports the directors in assessing key internal controls through a structured review programme. The internal audit
function is expected to meet or exceed the standard set by internationally recognised professional bodies including the Standards
for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing set by The Institute of Internal Auditors.

The internal audit function reports primarily to the Chairman of the AC. The AC ensures that the internal audit function has
adequate resources and has appropriate standing within the Group. The Committee, on an annual basis, assesses the effectiveness
of the internal auditors by examining:

• the scope of the internal auditors’ work;

• the quality of their reports;

• their relationship with the external auditors; and

• their independence of the areas reviewed.
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4 COMMUNICATION WITH OUR SHAREHOLDERS

The Company firmly believes in high standards of transparent corporate disclosure, pursuant to the SGX-ST’s Listing Rules
and the Singapore Companies Act, whereby shareholders are informed of all major developments that affect the Group.
Information is communicated to our shareholders on a timely basis. Where there is inadvertent disclosure made to a selected
group, the  Company will make the same disclosure publicly to all others as soon as practicable. Communication is made
through:

• annual reports that are prepared and sent to all shareholders. The Board ensures that the annual report includes all
 relevant information about the Company and the Group, including future developments and other disclosures required

by the Singapore Companies Act and Singapore Statements of Accounting Standard;

• interim announcements containing a summary of the financial information and affairs of the Group for that period;

• notices of and explanatory memoranda for AGMs and Extraordinary General Meetings;

• press releases for the Group’s interim and annual results; 

• press releases on major developments of the Company and the Group;

• disclosure to the SGX-ST; and

• the Company’s website at http://www.psc.com.sg at which our shareholders can access information on the Group.

Moreover, our shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM to ensure a high level of accountability and to be updated of
the Company’s strategies and goals. The notice of the AGM is sent to our shareholders, together with explanatory notes,
appendixes or a circular on items of special business, at least 14 days before the meeting. The Chairmen of the AC, NC and
RC are normally present and available to address questions relating to the work of their respective committees at general
meetings. Furthermore, the external auditors are present to assist our Board of Directors in addressing any relevant queries
by our shareholders.

Each item of special business included in the notice of the meeting is accompanied, where appropriate, by an explanation
for the proposed resolution. Separate resolutions are proposed for substantially separate issues at the meeting.

5 DEALINGS IN SECURITIES

Following the introduction of the Best Practices Guide by the SGX-ST, the Company has issued a policy on the restrictions
of Share Dealing to key employees and to employees of the Group and the Company who may be in possession of sensitive
information. In accordance with the Best Practices guidelines, the Company notifies the affected persons that they are
prohibited from trading in the Company’s shares one month prior to the announcement of the Company’s quarterly and full
year results. In addition, they are required to observe the insider trading laws under the Securities and Futures Act at all times
even when dealing in the Company’s shares within the permitted periods.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
28:

P r o v i s i o n s  S u p p l i e r s  C o r p o r a t i o n  L i m i t e d



P r o v i s i o n  S u p p l i e r s  C o r p o r a t i o n  L i m i t e d

29:

We are pleased to submit this annual report to the members of the Company together with the audited financial statements of the
Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2002.

DIRECTORS

The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Allan Yap (appointed on 10 May 2002)
Foo Der Rong
Chan Yeuk Wai (appointed on 10 May 2002)
Richard Lui Siu Tsuen (appointed on 10 May 2002)
Chee Teck Kwong, Patrick
Tao Yeoh Chi
S Chandra Das
Chua Keng Hiang (appointed on 27 February 2003)
Gerry Lee Kian Hup (Alternate director to S Chandra Das)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company during the financial year have been those relating to the supply of provisions and house-
hold consumer products. The Company also provides management services to the Econ Minimart chain of stores. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the activities of the Group or of the Company during the financial year.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries were made during the financial year:

EFFECTIVE GROUP’S SHARE
EQUITY OF NET TANGIBLE

INTEREST ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
ACQUIRED/ ACQUIRED/

NAME OF SUBSIDIARY DISPOSED OF DISPOSED OF CONSIDERATION
% $ $

ACQUISITION:

Incorporated by PSC Resort Pte Ltd
- Palm Meadows Sdn. Bhd. 100 1 1

DISPOSALS:

Liquidated by the Company:
- A & P Marketing Pte Ltd 100 (1,072) -

Liquidated by PSC Investment Pte Ltd:
- Fortune Bright Investment Pte Ltd 51 9,539 -

Liquidated by Tipex Trading Pte Ltd:
- Tipex Investment Pte Ltd 74 (15,770)   -

Liquidated by Fortune Bright Investment Pte Ltd:
- Fortune Bakery Singapore Pte Ltd 51 (8,366) -

There were no acquisitions or disposals of any other subsidiaries during the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
for the year ended 31 December 2002
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group and of the Company for the financial year are as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
$ $

(Loss)/ profit after taxation (3,498,454) 1,293,580

Minority interests (220,153) -

(Loss)/ profit attributed to members of the Company (3,718,607) 1,293,580

Accumulated profits brought forward 44,569,439 16,270,375

Profits available for appropriation 40,850,832 17,563,955

Appropriations:

Final dividend paid of 0.25 cents per share less tax

at 22% in respect of year 2001 (2,171,402) (2,171,402)

Accumulated profits carried forward $38,679,430 $15,392,553

TRANSFERS TO AND FROM RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

The following material transfers to and from reserves were made during the financial year:

GROUP
$

Currency Translation Reserve:

Realised exchange loss on disposal of investment in an associate 2,235,970

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements

of foreign subsidiaries and associates 369,299

$ 2,605,269

Material movements in provisions are as set out in the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

ISSUES OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

During the financial year, the Company and its subsidiaries did not issue any shares or debentures.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

According to the register kept by the Company for the purposes of Section 164 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the

“Act”), particulars of interests of directors who held office at the end of the financial year in shares in the Company are as follows:

HOLDINGS IN THE NAME OF THE DIRECTOR,
SPOUSE OR INFANT CHILDREN

AT BEGINNING AT END
OF THE YEAR OF THE YEAR

SHARES OF $0.05 EACH FULLY PAID

Tan Ling San (resigned on 1 February 2003) 7,375,875 7,375,875

Foo Der Rong 1,419,500 2,087,500
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONT’D)

OTHER HOLDINGS IN WHICH THE DIRECTOR
IS DEEMED TO HAVE AN INTEREST

AT BEGINNING AT END
OF THE YEAR OF THE YEAR

SHARES OF $0.05 EACH FULLY PAID
S Chandra Das 637,500 637,500

Except as disclosed in this report, no director who held office at the end of the financial year had interests in shares,
debentures, warrants or share options of the Company or of related corporations, either at the beginning of the financial year, or
date of appointment if later, or at the end of the financial year.

There was no change in any of the above-mentioned interests in the Company, in respect of directors holding office at the end of
the financial year, between the end of the financial year and 21 January 2003.

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose objects are, or
one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Since the end of the last financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract
made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which he is a member or with a company in which
he has a substantial financial interest.

DIVIDENDS

Since the end of the last financial year, the Company has paid a net final dividend of $2,171,402 in respect of the previous year
as proposed in the directors’ report of that year. No interim dividend has been paid during the year and the directors now
recommend the payment of a net final dividend and a net special dividend of $2,171,402 and $1,302,841, respectively, in
respect of the financial year under review.

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

Before the profit and loss account and the balance sheet of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps to
ascertain what action had been taken in relation to writing off bad debts and providing for doubtful debts of the Company. The
directors have satisfied themselves that all known bad debts have been written off and that adequate provision has been made for
doubtful debts.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render any amounts written off for bad
debts or provided for doubtful debts in the Group inadequate to any substantial extent.

CURRENT ASSETS

Before the profit and loss account and the balance sheet of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps to
ascertain that current assets of the Company which were unlikely to realise their book values in the ordinary course of business
have been written down to their estimated realisable values and that adequate provision has been made for the diminution in value
of such current assets.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report which would
render the values attributable to current assets in the Group misleading.
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CHARGES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Since the end of the financial year:

(i) no charge on the assets of the Group, or of the Company, has arisen which secures the liabilities of any other person; and
(ii) no contingent liability of the Group or of the Company has arisen.

ABILITY TO MEET OBLIGATIONS

No contingent liability or other liability of the Group or of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable
within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may
substantially affect the ability of the Group or of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.

OTHER CIRCUMSTANCES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial
statements which would render misleading any amount stated in the financial statements of the Group or of the Company.

UNUSUAL ITEMS

In the opinion of the directors, except for the loss on disposal of the investment in the former associate, Pulai Springs Resort
Berhad, of $6,909,590, no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has substantially affected the results of the
operations of the Group, or of the Company, during the financial year.

In the opinion of the directors, no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the
end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group
or of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

SHARE OPTIONS

During the financial year, there were:

(a) no options granted by the Company or its subsidiaries to any person to take up unissued shares in the Company or its
subsidiaries; and

(b) no shares issued by virtue of any exercise of option to take up unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiaries.

As at the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiaries under option.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The members of the Audit Committee at the date of this report are:

• Chee Teck Kwong, Patrick (Chairman), Non-Executive Independent Director
• Tao Yeoh Chi, Non-Executive Independent Director
• Chua Keng Hiang, Non-Executive Independent Director (appointed on 27 February 2003)

The Audit Committee performs the functions specified in section 201B of the Companies Act, the Listing Manual and the Best
Practices Guide of the Singapore Exchange.

In performing its functions, the Audit Committee met with the Company’s external and internal auditors to discuss the scope of
their work, the results of their examination and evaluation of the Company’s internal accounting control system.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONT’D)

The Audit Committee also reviewed the following:

• assistance provided by the Company’s officers to the internal and external auditors;
• financial statements of the Group and the Company prior to their submission to the directors of the Company for adoption;

and
• interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange).

The Audit Committee has full access to management and is given the resources required for it to discharge its functions. It  has full
authority and the discretion to invite any director or executive officer to attend its meetings.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the auditors, KPMG, be nominated for re-appointment as
auditors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

AUDITORS

The auditors, KPMG, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Allan Yap
Director

Foo Der Rong
Director

Singapore
17 April 2003
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We, being directors of the Company, do hereby state that in our opinion:

(a) the financial statements set out on pages 36 to 73 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2002 and of the results of the business and the changes in equity of the
Group and of the Company and cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they fall due.

The board of directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised these financial statements for issue.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Allan Yap
Director

Foo Der Rong
Director

Singapore
17 April 2003

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
for the year ended 31 December 2002
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We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2002 as set out on pages 36 to 73. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion:

(a) the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the
“Act”) and Singapore Statements of Accounting Standard so as to give a true and fair view of:

(i) the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2002 and of the results and changes in
equity of the Group and of the Company and of the cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) the other matters required by Section 201 of the Act to be dealt with in the financial statements;

(b) the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiaries
incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

We have considered the financial statements and auditors’ reports of all the subsidiaries of which we have not acted as auditors,
being financial statements that have been included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The names of these
subsidiaries are stated in Note 4 to the financial statements.

We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the financial statements of the
Company are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and explanations as required by us for those purposes.

The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to any qualification, and in respect of the
subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore, did not include any comment made under Section 207(3) of the Act.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Singapore
17 April 2003

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
PROVISIONS SUPPLIERS CORPORATION LIMITED
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GROUP COMPANY
NOTE 2002 2001 2002 2001

$ $ $ $
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 3 57,691,506 59,863,113 9,734,920 9,478,973
Interests in subsidiaries 4 - - 23,204,181 23,205,184
Investments in associates 5 11,963,593 44,758,795 - -
Other financial assets 6 11,556,414 12,994,620 2,994,620 12,994,620
Trademarks 7 - -    - -
Deferred tax assets 8 645,000 -    - -

81,856,513 117,616,528 35,933,721 45,678,777

CURRENT ASSETS

Other financial assets 6 8,998,526 190,084 4,830,694 190,084
Non-financial assets 9 418,948 418,948 90,000 90,000
Property held for development 10 629,409 - - -
Inventories 11 17,205,357 16,911,800 11,719,514 10,457,417
Trade and other receivables 13 41,358,340 38,743,136 41,459,678 57,372,143
Cash and cash equivalents 18 48,614,197 22,491,262 28,666,558 17,325,079

117,224,777 78,755,230 86,766,444 85,434,723
Less:

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bank overdrafts 18 1,143,400 2,010,401 - 89,812
Trade and other payables 19 32,476,140 29,738,497 19,560,641 26,536,759
Interest-bearing borrowings 20 10,656,715 27,765,064 94,883 328,152
Current tax payable 2,965,738 3,395,531 2,007,976 2,043,857

47,241,993 62,909,493 21,663,500 28,998,580

NET CURRENT ASSETS 69,982,784 15,845,737 65,102,944 56,436,143
Less:

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing borrowings 20 22,213,906 559,255 - 31,633
Deferred tax liabilities 8 154,570 389,750 - 168,800

22,368,476 949,005 - 200,433
129,470,821 132,513,260 101,036,665 101,914,487

MINORITY INTERESTS (3,452,773) (3,210,472) - -

NET ASSETS $126,018,048 $129,302,788 $101,036,665 $101,914,487

SHARE CAPITAL 21 55,676,994 55,676,994 55,676,994 55,676,994

RESERVES 22 70,341,054 73,625,794 45,359,671 46,237,493

$126,018,048 $129,302,788 $101,036,665 $101,914,487

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

BALANCE SHEETS
as at 31 December 2002
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GROUP COMPANY
NOTE 2002 2001 2002 2001

$ $ $ $

REVENUE 23 155,129,625 161,577,072 70,905,012 86,421,190

Other operating income 4,424,679 3,458,354 12,648,423 10,897,430
159,554,304 165,035,426 83,553,435 97,318,620

Less:
Changes in inventories of

finished goods and contract
work-in-progress (172,521) 1,058,937 (1,374,097) 688,682

Raw materials and consumables 99,031,283 109,841,118 67,670,275 80,029,101
Project development cost 12,918,936 4,689,733 - -
Staff costs 18,424,170 17,685,116 5,828,863 5,786,451
Advertisement 3,870,833 6,335,130 2,133,383 3,308,520
Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment 3 3,705,348 4,020,040 816,774 816,259
Impairment loss on property,

plant and equipment 3 685,950 487,200 - -
Impairment loss on investment

in an associate 5 680,000 - - -
Decrease in carrying amount of

quoted equity securities
stated at market value 1,512,610 46,000  362,000 46,000

Amortisation of trademark 8 - 25,321 - -
Allowance made for doubtful

receivables from:
- subsidiaries (non-trade), net 16 - - 2,280,000 -
- associates (non-trade) 17 100,000 - - -
Other operating expenses 13,535,378 12,678,503 3,279,128 3,468,220

Total operating expenses 154,291,987 156,867,098 80,996,326 94,143,233

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 24 5,262,317 8,168,328 2,557,109 3,175,387

Finance costs 25 (2,351,486) (2,229,157) (8,103) (8,135)

Loss on disposal of investment
in an associate (6,909,590) - - -

Share of profit of associates 2,445,805 3,729,911 - -

(LOSS)/ PROFIT FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION (1,552,954) 9,669,082 2,549,006 3,167,252

Income tax expense 26 (1,945,500) (3,218,561) (1,255,426) (824,200)

(LOSS)/ PROFIT FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES AFTER TAXATION (3,498,454) 6,450,521 1,293,580 2,343,052

Minority interests (220,153) (181,852) - -

NET (LOSS)/ PROFIT FOR THE YEAR $(3,718,607) $ 6,268,669 $ 1,293,580 $ 2,343,052

BASIC (LOSS)/ EARNINGS PER SHARE 27 (0.33 cents) 0.56 cents

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31 December 2002
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OTHER CURRENCY
SHARE SHARE CAPITAL TRANSLATION ACCUMULATED

CAPITAL PREMIUM RESERVES RESERVE PROFITS TOTAL
$ $ $ $ $ $

GROUP

At 1 January 2001 56,287,944 29,706,655 124,106 (7,151,285) 43,196,114 122,163,534

Exchange differences
on translation of
financial statements of
- subsidiaries - - - 940,149 - 940,149
- associates - - - 2,825,780 - 2,825,780

Net gains recognised
directly in equity - - - 3,765,929 - 3,765,929

Net profit for the year - - - - 6,268,669 6,268,669

Shares in the Company
repurchased and
cancelled (610,950) - 610,950 - (1,195,448) (1,195,448)

Issue of bonus shares
by a subsidiary - - 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) -

Final dividend paid of
0.20 cents per share
less tax at 24.5%
in respect of 2000 - - - - (1,699,896) (1,699,896)

At 31 December 2001  55,676,994  29,706,655 2,735,056  (3,385,356) 44,569,439 129,302,788

Realised exchange loss on
disposal of investment
in an associate - - - 2,235,970 - 2,235,970

Exchange differences
on translation of
financial statements of
- subsidiaries - - - (403,024) - (403,024)
- associates - - - 772,323 - 772,323

Net gains recognised
directly in equity - - - 2,605,269 - 2,605,269

Net loss for the year - - - - (3,718,607) (3,718,607)

Final dividend paid of
0.25 cents per share
less tax at 22%
in respect of 2001 - - - - (2,171,402) (2,171,402)

At 31 December 2002 $55,676,994 $29,706,655 $2,735,056 $ (780,087) $38,679,430 $126,018,048

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2002
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OTHER
SHARE SHARE CAPITAL  ACCUMULATED

CAPITAL PREMIUM RESERVES PROFIT TOTAL
$ $ $ $ $

COMPANY

At 1 January 2001 56,287,944 29,356,168 - 16,822,667 102,466,779

Net profit for the year - - - 2,343,052 2,343,052

Shares in the Company
repurchased and cancelled (610,950) - 610,950 (1,195,448) (1,195,448)

Final dividend paid of 0.20 cents
per share less tax at 24.5%
in respect of year 2000 - - - (1,699,896) (1,699,896)

At 31 December 2001 55,676,994 29,356,168     610,950 16,270,375 101,914,487

Net profit for the year - - - 1,293,580 1,293,580

Final dividend paid of 0.25 cents
per share less tax at 22%
in respect of year 2001 - - - (2,171,402) (2,171,402)

At 31 December 2002 $55,676,994 $29,356,168 $    610,950 $15,392,553 $101,036,665

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2002
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GROUP
2002 2001

$ $

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Loss)/ profit from ordinary activities before taxation (1,552,954) 9,669,082

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,705,348 4,020,040
Share of profit of associates (2,445,805) (3,729,911)
Amortisation of trademarks - 25,321
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (122,292) (70,222)
Gain on disposal of quoted securities (11,000) -
Gain on dilution of interest in a subsidiary (4,282) -
Loss on disposal of investment in an associate 6,909,590 -
Property, plant and equipment written off 12,054 613
Inventories written off 44,605 72,430
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 685,950 487,200
Impairment loss on investment in an associate 680,000 -
Decrease in carrying amount of quoted equity

securities stated at market value 1,512,610 46,000
Interest expense 2,351,486 2,229,157
Interest income (961,808) (1,012,022)
Dividend income (5,381) (6,553)

Operating profit before working capital changes 10,798,121 11,731,135

Changes in working capital:

Inventories (517,687) 1,588,228
Trade and other receivables 1,331,217 12,255,179
Trade and other payables 4,464,019 (4,043,784)

Cash generated from operations 16,075,670 21,530,758

Interest paid (2,351,486) (2,229,157)
Interest received 983,511 910,993
Income tax paid (3,244,731) (2,407,144)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 11,462,964 17,805,450

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of quoted securities (5,002,610) (9,000,450)
Proceeds from disposal of quoted securities 10,011,000 -
Cash proceeds from divestment of investment

in an associate 10,536,376 -
Dividend income received 5,381 6,553
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,043,377) (1,773,486)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment 321,514 616,484
Proceeds from disposal of investment in an

associate 5 -
Shares repurchased and cancelled - (1,195,448)
Contribution to share capital of an associate      (343) (120,000)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 13,827,946 (11,466,347)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2002
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GROUP
Note 2002 2001

$ $
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Finance lease payables (220,681) (227,272)
Trust receipts (517,166) 344,948
Proceeds from bank loans 5,105,242 141,024
Repayment of bank loans (516,878) (1,547,563)
Dividend paid (2,171,402) (1,699,896)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,679,115 (2,988,759)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26,970,025 3,350,344

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 20,480,861 17,168,379

Effect of exchange rate changes on balances held
in foreign currencies 19,911 (37,862)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 18 $47,470,797 $20,480,861

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of $2,115,402 (2001: $2,021,075), of
which $72,025 (2001: $247,589) was acquired by means of finance leases. Cash payments of $2,043,377 (2001: $1,773,486)
were made to purchase property, plant and equipment.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2002
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These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 17 April 2003.

1. DOMICILE AND ACTIVITIES

Provisions Suppliers Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and has its registered
office at 348 Jalan Boon Lay, Singapore 619529.

The principal activities of the Company are those relating to the supply of provisions and household consumer products.
The Company also provides management services to the Econ Minimart chain of stores. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements relate to the Company and its subsidiaries (referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s
investments in associates.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Singapore Statements of Accounting Standard (“SAS”), including
related Interpretations promulgated by the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore and the applicable
requirements of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50.

The historical cost basis is used except that certain property, plant and equipment are stated at valuation and certain
investments in securities are stated at fair value. Amounts are expressed in Singapore dollars, unless stated otherwise.

(b) Consolidation

Subsidiaries are those companies controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of a company so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less impairment losses. Subsidiaries are
consolidated with the Company in the Group’s financial statements.

Associates are companies in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating
policies.

Investments in associates are stated in the Company’s balance sheet at cost, less impairment losses. In the Group’s financial
statements, they are accounted for by using the equity method of accounting.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds the carrying amount of the associate, the carrying amount is fully written down and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred obligations in respect of the
associate.

(c) Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies, except for foreign currency assets and liabilities hedged by foreign
exchange contracts, are translated into Singapore dollars at rates of exchange closely approximate to those ruling at the
balance sheet date. Foreign currency assets and liabilities hedged by forward exchange contracts are translated into
Singapore dollars at the contracted forward exchange rates. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at rates ruling on
transaction dates. Translation differences are included in the profit and loss account except:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2002
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(c) Foreign currencies (cont’d)

• Where foreign currency loans provide an effective hedge against the net investment in foreign subsidiaries and associates,
exchange differences arising on the loans are recognised directly in equity until disposal of the investments.

• Where monetary items in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the foreign subsidiaries and associates,
exchange differences arising on such monetary items are recognised directly in equity until disposal of the investments.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Singapore dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. The results of foreign operations are translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising on translation are recognised directly in equity. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of foreign entities are stated at exchange rates ruling on transaction dates.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses except for a leasehold
building which is stated at its revalued amount. The revalued amount is the fair value determined on the basis of existing
use at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation. The Group does not have any formal policy with
regards to the frequency for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

Any increase in revaluation is credited to revaluation reserve unless it offsets a previous decrease in value recognised in the
profit and loss account. A decrease in value is recognised in the profit and loss account where it exceeds the increase
previously recognised in the revaluation reserve. Upon disposal, any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to accumulated profits and is not taken into account in arriving at the gain or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment acquired through finance leases is capitalised at the lower of its fair value and the present
value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against the profit and loss
account. Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the economic useful life of the asset and the lease term.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land. Leasehold buildings are depreciated on the straight-line basis over the
respective remaining periods of the leases from the dates of acquisition which range between 16 years and 38 years.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated on the straight-line basis over the remaining lease periods. Other property, plant and
equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis to write off their costs over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold buildings - 50 years
Renovations - 3 to 10 years
Furniture, fittings and office equipment - 6 to 10 years
Warehouse equipment - 6 to 10 years
Motor vehicles - 4 to 10 years
Plant and machinery - 6 to 10 years
Computers - 3 to 5 years
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(e) Properties held for development

Properties held for development consists of land held for the purpose of development and future sale. Development properties
are stated at cost, less any allowance considered necessary by the directors.

(f) Goodwill on consolidation

Goodwill arising on acquisition represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries and associates that occurred prior to 1 January 2001 were written off against reserves
and has not been retrospectively capitalised and amortised. Goodwill is amortised in the profit and loss account using the
straight-line method over its estimated useful life of not more than 20 years.

The gain or loss on disposal of an entity includes the unamortised balance of goodwill relating to the entity disposed of or, for
acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001, the goodwill written off against reserves.

(g) Trademarks

Trademarks are amortised over a period of between three and ten years.

(h) Other financial assets

Debt and equity securities held for the long-term are stated at cost less an allowance for diminution in value which, in the
opinion of the directors, are other than temporary.

Equity securities held for the short-term are stated at market value, on a portfolio basis. Any increases or decreases in carrying
amount are included in the profit and loss account.

(i) Non-financial assets

Transferable country club memberships are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(j) Derivatives and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are used to manage exposure to foreign exchange risks arising from operational and financing
activities. Derivative financial instruments are not used for trading purposes.

Gains and losses from forward exchange contracts used to hedge anticipated future currency transactions are deferred until
the forecasted transaction occurs. Where the hedged item is a recognised asset or liability, it is translated at the contracted
forward rates.

(k) Inventories

Trading goods

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate
share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(k) Inventories (cont’d)

Contract work-in-progress

Contract work-in-progress at the balance sheet date are recorded at the net amount of costs incurred plus attributable profits
and after deducting progress billings.

Contract costs comprise costs that relate directly to the contracts, attributable to the contract activity in general and can be
allocated to the specific contract, and other costs chargeable to the customer within the terms of the contract. Losses on
contracts are recognised in the financial statements as soon as the loss is foreseen. Such losses recognised include both the
loss for the stage of completion reached on the contracts and the loss for future works on the contracts.

(l) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank deposits. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and which form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

(m) Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of leasehold building carried at revalued amount is recognised in the same way as a
revaluation decrease. All other impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. A reversal of an
impairment loss in respect of leasehold building carried at revalued amount is recognised in the same way as a revaluation
increase. All other reversals of impairment loss are recognised in the profit and loss account.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed unless the loss was caused by a specific external event of an
exceptional nature that is not expected to recur, and the increase in recoverable amount relates clearly to the reversal of
the effect of that specific event.

(n) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is, however, not recognised on temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit. The
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(n) Deferred tax (cont’d)

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.

(o) Repurchase of share capital

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the issued share capital is reduced by the par value of the shares
repurchased and transferred to a capital redemption reserve. The costs associated with the repurchase, comprising the
purchase consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, are set off against accumulated profits.

(p) Revenue recognition

Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. Revenue
excludes goods and services or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts. No revenue is recognised if
there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of
goods.

Construction Contracts

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised on the percentage of completion method measured by reference to the
percentage of actual costs incurred to date against budgeted costs.

Revenue from Hotel Operations

Revenue arising from hotel operations is recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Interest Income, Dividend Income, Fee Income, Claims and Rebates and Rental Income

Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time-apportioned basis.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Fee income, claims and rebates and rental income are recognised on an accrual basis.

(q) Operating leases

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made under the leases are recognised in the profit
and loss account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the profit and
loss account as an integral part of the total lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to the profit and loss
account in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

(r) Finance costs

Interest expense and similar charges are expensed in the profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to prepare for its intended use or sale. The interest component
of finance lease payments is recognised in the profit and loss account using the effective interest rate method.
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

(a) The leasehold building stated at directors’ valuation is based on an independent professional valuation carried out on an
open market value basis in 1990.

Had the leasehold building been stated at cost, the net book value in the Group and in the Company would have been
$5,463,425 (2001: $5,681,977).

(b) Included in the net book value of property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the Company are assets with net
book value of $834,565 (2001: $1,002,126) and $121,470 (2001: $151,838), respectively, which are acquired
under finance leases.

4. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
COMPANY

2002 2001
$ $

Unquoted equity shares, at cost 24,704,181 24,705,184
Less:

Impairment losses, at beginning
and end of the year 1,500,000 1,500,000

$23,204,181 $23,205,184
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

PLACE OF EFFECTIVE
NAME OF PRINCIPAL INCORPORATION EQUITY HELD COST OF
SUBSIDIARY ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS BY THE GROUP INVESTMENT

2002 2001 2002 2001
% % $ $

@ Topseller Pte Ltd Supply of agency Singapore 100 100 1,000,000 1,000,000
and its subsidiary: products to

supermarkets, hotels,
institutions and
provision shops

@ A.T. Chemical Marketing and Singapore 100 100 - -
Pte Ltd distribution of

chemical products

@ Econ Minimart Dormant Singapore 100 100 2 2
Services Pte Ltd

@ Tipex Trading Supply of provisions Singapore 74 74 370,000 370,000
Pte Ltd and its and household
subsidiaries: products

@ Tips Trading Supply of shelving Singapore 74 74 - -
Pte Ltd

* Tipex Investment Dormant Singapore - 74 - -
Pte Ltd

^ Tips Industry Packing of paper Malaysia 74 74 - -
(M) Sdn. Bhd. products

^ Beautex Marketing Sale of paper Malaysia 74 74 - -
(M) Sdn. Bhd. products and

household
consumer products

Balance carried forward 1,370,002 1,370,002
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 4. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

PLACE OF EFFECTIVE
NAME OF PRINCIPAL INCORPORATION EQUITY HELD COST OF
SUBSIDIARY ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS BY THE GROUP INVESTMENT

2002 2001 2002 2001
% % $ $

Balance brought forward 1,370,002 1,370,002

* A & P Marketing Dormant Singapore - 100 - 1,003
Pte Ltd

^ Socma Trading (M) Marketing and Malaysia 100 100 4,334,177 4,334,177
Sdn. Bhd. and its sale of household
subsidiaries: consumer products

^ Econfood Manufacture of Malaysia 100 100 - -
Manufacturing edible oils and
(M) Sdn. Bhd. jelly products

^ Fresh Fruit Juice Manufacture of Malaysia 100 100 - -
Manufacturing fruit juice drinks
(M) Sdn. Bhd.

@ PSC Investment Investment holding Singapore 100 100 2,000,000 2,000,000
Pte Ltd and its
subsidiaries:

* Fortune Bright Investment holding Singapore - 51 - -
Investment Pte Ltd
and its subsidiary:

* Fortune Bakery Investment holding Singapore - 51 - -
Singapore
Pte Ltd

@ Mountain Investment holding Singapore 100 100 - -
Investment Pte
Ltd and its
subsidiary:

÷ Harbin Cartel Entertainment and People’s 60 60 - -
International hotel operator Republic of
Club Co Ltd China

@ Fortune Food Manufacture of Singapore 100 100 6,000,000 6,000,000
Manufacturing soya bean products
Pte Ltd and its
subsidiary:

@ Fortune Food Sale of soya bean Singapore 100 100 - -
Marketing products
Pte Ltd

@ PSC Resort Pte Ltd Marketing agent Singapore 100 100 1,000,000 1,000,000
and its subsidiary: of golf memberships

Balance carried forward 14,704,179 14,705,182
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4. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)
PLACE OF EFFECTIVE

NAME OF PRINCIPAL INCORPORATION EQUITY HELD COST OF
SUBSIDIARY ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS BY THE GROUP INVESTMENT

2002 2001 2002 2001
% % $ $

Balance brought forward 14,704,179 14,705,182

g Palm Meadows Dormant Malaysia 100 - - -
Sdn. Bhd.

@ Topseller Develop- Investment holding Singapore 100 100 2 2
ment Pte Ltd and
its subsidiary:

^ Flobina Sdn. Bhd. Property Malaysia 100 100 - -
development

@ PSC International Investment holding Singapore 100 100 10,000,000 10,000,000
Pte Ltd and its
subsidiaries:

† Playford Hotel Hotel Australia 70 70 - -
Pty Ltd

@ HSI Group Pte Investment holding Singapore 95 95 - -
Ltd and its
subsidiaries:

Ω Health Solutions Construction of Malaysia 95 95 - -
(Malaysia) hospital turnkey projects
Sdn. Bhd. and and provision of health
its subsidiary: care consultancy and

hospital management
services

Ω Health Solutions Dormant Malaysia ** 67 - -
Services
Sdn. Bhd.

$24,704,181 $24,705,184
@ Audited by KPMG Singapore.
^ Audited by KPMG Malaysia.
† Audited by KPMG Australia.
÷ Audited by Harbin Public Accountant Office, People’s Republic of China.
Ω Audited by Deloitte & Touche, Malaysia.
g Audited by Goh Joon Hia & Co., Malaysia.
* Deregistered during the financial year.
** During the financial year, the subsidiary increased its paid-up capital by the issuance of additional ordinary shares to its

shareholders. The amount subscribed by the Group was less than its proportionate interest in the subsidiary. As a result, the
percentage of equity interest held by the Group in the company was diluted to 28.5%. The company, Health Solutions
Services Sdn. Bhd., is now considered to be an associate of the Group (Note 5).
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5. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
GROUP

2002 2001
$ $

Unquoted equity shares, at cost 8,939,045 14,464,011
Less:

Impairment losses
At 1 January 700,000 700,000
Impairment loss made during the year 680,000 -

At 31 December 1,380,000 700,000
7,559,045 13,764,011

Share premium 350,487 350,487
Share of post-acquisition retained earnings 2,832,659 30,195,218
Currency translation reserve 1,221,402 449,079

$11,963,593 $44,758,795

Details of the associates are as follows:
PLACE OF EFFECTIVE

PRINCIPAL INCORPORATION EQUITY HELD
NAME OF ASSOCIATE ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS BY THE GROUP

2002 2001
% %

& Health Solutions (Australia) ) Provision of health Australia 46.5 46.5
Pty Ltd and its subsidiaries: ) care consultancy and

) hospital management
~ Health Solutions (WA) Pty Ltd ) services Australia 33.7 33.7

* Health Solutions Pty Ltd Dormant Australia - 27.9

* Health Solutions (NSW) Pty Ltd Dormant Australia - 41.9

Ω Health Solutions (S.E. Asia) Construction of hospital Malaysia 28.5 28.5
Sdn. Bhd. turnkey projects and provision

of health care consultancy and
hospital management services

Ω Andaria Sdn. Bhd. Dormant Malaysia - 28.5

Ω Health Solutions Services Dormant Malaysia 28.5 ##
Sdn. Bhd.

Pulai Springs Resort Berhad Developer, proprietor Malaysia - 50
and operator of a golf
and country club and
other recreational facilities

∑ Pancagala Resouces Sdn. Bhd. Developer, proprietor Malaysia 50 50
and operator of a golf
and country club and
other recreational facilities

∑ Freshpoint Sdn. Bhd. Dormant Malaysia 29 29

÷ Harbin Puwei Real Estate Development of People’s Republic 40 40
Development Co Ltd property in China of China

+ Longkou Luzhibei Preserved Manufacture and People’s Republic 40 40
Fruit Company Limited distribution of preserved of China

fruits
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5. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

PLACE OF EFFECTIVE
PRINCIPAL INCORPORATION EQUITY HELD

NAME OF ASSOCIATE ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS BY THE GROUP
2002 2001

% %

# Sanya Fu Dao Tourism Co Ltd Operation of a hotel People’s Republic 40 40
in China of China

+ Topseller Chemical (China) Supply of washing People’s Republic 40 40
Company Limited powder and detergents of China

* Provisions (Asia) Trading Export and import Singapore - 40
Pte Ltd of food products

÷ Audited by Harbin Public Accountant Office, People’s Republic of China.
+ Audited by Yantai Longkou Company Accountant, People’s Republic of China.
# Audited by Sanya Tianya CPA Office, People’s Republic of China.
~ Audited by Ernst & Young, Australia.
Ω Audited by Deloitte & Touche, Malaysia.
∑ Audited by Smalley & Company, Malaysia.
& Not required to be audited by law of country of incorporation.
* Deregistered during the financial year.
## See Note 4.

6. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

GROUP COMPANY
2002 2001 2002 2001

$ $ $ $

NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS,
AT COST

Quoted investments:
- debt securities 2,994,620 12,994,620 2,994,620 12,994,620
- equity securities 8,561,794 - - -

$ 11,556,414 $12,994,620 $ 2,994,620 $12,994,620
CURRENT INVESTMENTS,

AT MARKET VALUE
Quoted equity securities $ 8,998,526 $ 190,084 $ 4,830,694 $ 190,084

The market value of the non-current quoted investments is disclosed in Note 33.
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6. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONT’D)

The weighted average effective interest rates of quoted debt securities at the balance sheet date and the periods in which they
reprice or mature, whichever is earlier, are as follows:

EFFECTIVE FIXED INTEREST RATE MATURING
GROUP AND INTEREST WITHIN 1 TO 5 AFTER
COMPANY RATES 1 YEAR YEARS 5 YEARS TOTAL

% $ $ $ $

2002
Quoted debt securities 4.77 $ - $2,994,620 $ - $ 2,994,620

2001
Quoted debt securities 3.93 $ - $7,994,620 $ 5,000,000 $12,994,620

7. TRADEMARKS
GROUP

2002 2001
$ $

At cost 363,050 363,050
Less:

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 363,050 337,729
Amortisation during the year        - 25,321

At 31 December 363,050 363,050

$  - $ -

8. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

ASSETS LIABILITIES NET
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

GROUP $ $ $ $ $ $

Property, plant and
equipment 369,997 - (298,444) (341,117) 71,553 (341,117)

Other financial assets 123,000 48,020 - - 123,000 48,020
Trade and other

receivables 30,639 - - - 30,639 -
Tax value of loss

carry-forward 275,238 - - - 275,238 -
Other items - 13,550 (10,000) (110,203) (10,000) (96,653)
Net tax assets/

(liabilities) $798,874 $ 61,570 $(308,444) $(451,320) $ 490,430 $(389,750)
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8. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT’D)

ASSETS LIABILITIES NET
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

COMPANY $ $ $ $ $ $

Property, plant and
equipment - - (113,000) (135,790) (113,000) (135,790)

Other financial assets 123,000 48,020 -  - 123,000 48,020
Other items - - (10,000) (81,030) (10,000) (81,030)
Net tax assets/

(liabilities) $123,000 $ 48,020 $(123,000) $(216,820) $ - $ (168,800)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority. The amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
2002 2001 2002 2001

$ $ $ $

Deferred tax assets 645,000 - - -
Deferred tax liabilities (154,570) (389,750) - (168,800)

$    490,430 $  (389,750) $  - $ (168,800)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

GROUP
2002 2001

$ $

Tax losses 11,475,434 11,983,236
Deductible temporary difference 204,378 2,885,606

$11,679,812 $14,868,842

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the respective subsidiaries concerned can utilise the benefits.

9. NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

GROUP COMPANY
2002 2001 2002 2001

$ $ $ $
Transferable country club

memberships $    418,948 $    418,948 $ 90,000 $ 90,000

10. PROPERTY HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

GROUP
2002 2001

$ $

Land and other related costs $   629,409 $   -
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11. INVENTORIES
GROUP COMPANY

NOTE 2002 2001 2002 2001
$ $ $ $

Raw materials 1,461,727 1,269,337 - -
Finished goods 15,292,962 14,588,651 11,854,024 10,479,927
Packing materials 44,307 57,208 - -

16,798,996 15,915,196 11,854,024 10,479,927
Less:

Allowance for finished
goods:

At 1 January 205,310 222,436 22,510 22,510
Allowance made during

 the year 115,462 69,009 112,000 -
Allowance used during

the year (53,510) (91,002) - -
Translation difference (3,499) 4,867 - -

At 31 December 263,763 205,310 134,510 22,510
16,535,233 15,709,886 11,719,514 10,457,417

Contract work-in-
progress 12 670,124 1,201,914 - -

$17,205,357 $16,911,800 $11,719,514 $10,457,417

12. CONTRACT WORK-IN-PROGRESS

GROUP
2002 2001

$ $

Project costs 35,353,965 23,331,864
Add:

Attributable profit 5,916,337 5,493,635
41,270,302 28,825,499

Less:
Progress billings 40,600,178 27,623,585

$ 670,124 $ 1,201,914

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
GROUP COMPANY

NOTE 2002 2001 2002 2001
$ $ $ $

Trade receivables 14 23,825,669 27,069,038 8,440,672 11,216,462
Deposits, prepayments

and other receivables 15 6,177,659 1,835,060 320,198 395,321
Amounts due from:
- subsidiaries 16 - - 32,664,325 43,797,547
- associates 17 11,355,012 9,835,183 34,483 1,958,958
- related corporation

(mainly non-trade) - 3,855 - 3,855
$41,358,340 $38,743,136 $41,459,678 $57,372,143
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14. TRADE RECEIVABLES
GROUP COMPANY

2002 2001 2002 2001
$ $ $ $

Trade receivables 26,021,569 29,381,959 8,919,533 11,621,422
Less:

Allowance for doubtful
receivables:

At 1 January 2,312,921 2,573,805 404,960 373,435
Allowance made

during the year 322,272 60,907 73,901 31,525
Allowance reversed

during the year (52,748) - - -
Allowance used

during the year (351,037) (365,108) - -
Translation difference (35,508) 43,317 - -

At 31 December 2,195,900 2,312,921 478,861 404,960
$23,825,669 $27,069,038 $ 8,440,672 $11,216,462

15. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
GROUP COMPANY

2002 2001 2002 2001
$ $ $ $

Deposits 184,597 297,033 12,265 8,857
Prepayments 1,029,071 440,922 50,638 38,266
Non-trade receivables 4,881,379 969,294 176,585 247,923
Interest receivables 82,612 104,315 80,710 100,275
Amount due from minority

shareholder of a subsidiary - 23,496 - -
$ 6,177,659 $ 1,835,060 $ 320,198 $ 395,321
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16. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES
COMPANY

2002 2001
$ $

Interest-free loan - 4,461,677
Current accounts:
- trade 904,398 15,126,729
- non-trade 36,439,927 26,609,141

37,344,325 46,197,547
Less:

Allowance for doubtful receivables

At 1 January 2,400,000 2,400,000
Allowance reversed during the year (2,400,000) -
Allowance made during the year 4,680,000 -

At 31 December 4,680,000 2,400,000
$32,664,325 $43,797,547

The non-trade amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

17. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES
GROUP COMPANY

2002 2001 2002 2001
$ $ $ $

Interest-free loan 812,685 812,685 - -
Interest-bearing loan 208,504 265,579 - -
Current accounts:
- trade 245,801 - 34,483 35
- non-trade 10,188,022 8,756,919 - 1,958,923

11,455,012 9,835,183 34,483 1,958,958
Less:

Allowance for doubtful receivables

At 1 January - - - -
Allowance made during

the year 100,000 - - -

At 31 December 100,000 - - -
$11,355,012 $9,835,183 $      34,483   $1,958,958

The non-trade amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The loans are
unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment. At the balance sheet date, the interest-bearing loan of $208,504 (2001:
$265,579) has an effective interest rate of 5.115% (2001: 6.138%) per annum.
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18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
GROUP COMPANY

2002 2001 2002 2001
$ $ $ $

Cash at bank and in hand 6,244,997 2,757,398 372,789 193,239
Fixed deposits with banks 42,369,200 19,733,864 28,293,769 17,131,840

48,614,197 22,491,262 28,666,558 17,325,079
Bank overdrafts (1,143,400) (2,010,401) - (89,812)

$47,470,797 $20,480,861 $28,666,558 $17,235,267

Included in fixed deposits is $2,700,000 (2001: $855,000) relating to security deposits from customers of the Company.

Included in bank overdrafts of the Group is an amount of $859,683 (2001: $1,052,887), secured by a standby letter of
credit  from a bank of $1,470,000 (2001: $1,470,000) which is undertaken and guaranteed by the Company.

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum at the balance sheet date are as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
2002 2001 2002 2001

% % % %
Cash and cash equivalents,

excluding bank overdrafts 3.50 1.82 3.77 1.74
Bank overdrafts 6.40 6.81 - 5.75

Interest rates reprice at intervals of less than 1 month.

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
GROUP COMPANY

2002 2001 2002 2001
$ $ $ $

Trade payables and
accruals 24,835,290 24,154,131 12,653,133 14,475,153

Amounts due to
- subsidiaries:

- trade - - 644,771 10,451,432
- non-trade - - 3,389,717 606,625

- associates
(mainly non-trade) 1,727,700 1,640,493 13,092 13,092

Other payables 5,913,150 3,943,873 2,859,928 990,457
$32,476,140 $29,738,497 $19,560,641 $26,536,759

The non-trade amounts due to subsidiaries and associates are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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20. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
GROUP COMPANY

2002 2001 2002 2001
$ $ $ $

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Secured bank loans 21,975,493 162,762 - -
Finance lease liabilities 238,413 396,493 - 31,633

$22,213,906 $ 559,255 $  - $       31,633
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Secured bank loans 6,811,127 22,671,145 - -
Unsecured bank loans 979,865 1,634,130 - -
Trust receipts 2,667,574 3,184,740 63,250 252,233
Finance lease liabilities 198,149 275,049 31,633 75,919

$10,656,715 $27,765,064 $ 94,883 $ 328,152
SECURED

The secured bank loans comprise:

(i) Term loan of A$23,050,000, equivalent to $22,692,725 (2001: A$23,850,000, equivalent to $22,593,105), which is
secured by a first legal mortgage over the freehold land and building owned by a subsidiary with a carrying value of $28,864,465
as at 31 December 2002 (2001: $28,274,521), a fixed and floating charge over the subsidiary’s present and future assets
and a guarantee from the Company.  The term loan bears interest at 7.09% (2001: 8.10%) per annum. The loan is repayable
by annual instalments of A$400,000 in April 2000, followed by annual instalment of A$800,000 thereafter. The balance of
the outstanding term loan shall be repaid in full on the fifth anniversary of the loan draw-down date unless advised by the bank
that it has been extended for a further term.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the term loan was refinanced. The new term loan is repayable by quarterly instalments
of A$200,000 from March 2003. The balance of the outstanding term loan shall be repaid in full on the fifth anniversary of
the loan draw-down date unless advised by the bank that it has been extended for a further term.  Accordingly, the portion of
the term loan that is repayable 12 months from 31 December 2002 of A$22,250,000, equivalent to $21,905,125, has been
classified under non-current liabilities.

(ii) Term loan of RM330,816, equivalent to $151,282 (2001: RM494,257, equivalent to $240,802), which is secured by fixed
charges on a subsidiary’s freehold land and building with a carrying value of $1,107,989 as at 31 December 2002 (2001:
$1,200,977). The term loan bears interest at 1.75% above the bank’s base lending rate and is repayable in 60 monthly
instalments commencing November 1999.

(iii) Bankers’ acceptances of RM12,995,000, equivalent to $5,942,613 (2001: Nil) which form part of a credit facility obtained
by a subsidiary. The credit facility is secured by assignment of contract proceeds and sinking fund from the contract work-in-
progress undertaken by the subsidiary and its associates, 20% marginal deposit placed with the bank upon each application
of tender guarantee and a corporate guarantee from the Company. At the balance sheet date, the bankers’ acceptances bear
interest ranging from 2.95% to 4.95% per annum and are repayable within 180 days or the credit period as stated in  the
respective invoices, whichever is shorter.
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20. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Unsecured

The unsecured bank loans comprise bank term loan of RMB4,362,931, equivalent to $979,865  (2001: RMB4,632,900,
equivalent to $1,034,130) which bears fixed interest rate of 6.7% (2001: 6.7%) per annum.

Maturity of borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities):
GROUP

2002 2001
$ $

Within 1 year 32,363,691 27,490,015
After 1 year but within 5 years 70,368  162,762

$32,434,059 $27,652,777

Weighted average effective interest rates and repricing analysis:

EFFECTIVE FIXED INTEREST RATE MATURING
INTEREST FLOATING WITHIN 1 TO 5 AFTER

RATES INTEREST 1 YEAR YEARS 5 YEARS TOTAL
GROUP % $ $ $ $ $

2002

Secured bank loans:

- A$ fixed rate loan 7.09 - 22,692,724 - - 22,692,724

- RM floating rate loan 2.95 – 4.95 6,093,896 - - - 6,093,896

Unsecured bank loans 6.70 979,865 - - - 979,865

Trust receipts 3.85 – 5.50 - 2,667,574 - - 2,667,574

Finance lease liabilities 2.50 – 6.00 - 198,149 238,413 - 436,562

$7,073,761 $25,558,447 $ 238,413 $ - $32,870,621

2001

Secured bank loans:

- A$ fixed rate loan 8.10 - 22,593,105 - - 22,593,105

- RM floating rate loan 4.90 240,802 - - - 240,802

Unsecured bank loans 3.40 – 6.70 1,634,130 - - - 1,634,130

Trust receipts 6.14 – 8.05 - 3,184,740 - - 3,184,740

Finance lease liabilities 2.60 – 6.00 - 275,049 384,533 11,960 671,542

$1,874,932 $26,052,894 $ 384,533 $ 11,960 $28,324,319

COMPANY

2002

Trust receipts 5.50    -  63,250  -  - 63,250

Finance lease liabilities 2.57 - 31,633    - - 31,633

$ - $ 94,883 $      - $ - $ 94,883

2001

Trust receipts 5.50   - 252,233 -  - 252,233

Finance lease liabilities 2.60 - 75,919 31,633 - 107,552

$           - $    328,152 $   31,633 $ - $ 359,785
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20. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Finance Lease Liabilities
As at 31 December 2002, the Group and the Company have obligations under finance leases that are repayable as follows:

 2002 2001
PAYMENTS INTEREST PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS INTEREST PRINCIPAL

GROUP $ $ $ $ $ $

Within 1 year 226,060 27,911 198,149 301,487 26,438 275,049
After 1 year but within

5 years 285,075 46,662 238,413 457,399 72,866 384,533
After 5 years - - - 14,189 2,229 11,960

511,135 74,573 436,562 773,075 101,533 671,542
Amount due within

1 year (226,060) (27,911) (198,149) (301,487) (26,438) (275,049)
$ 285,075 $ 46,662 $ 238,413 $ 471,588 $ 75,095 $   396,493

COMPANY

Within 1 year 34,110 2,477 31,633 81,864 5,945 75,919
After 1 year but within

5 years - - - 34,110 2,477 31,633
$ 34,110 $ 2,477 $ 31,633 $ 115,974 $ 8,422 $ 107,552

21. SHARE CAPITAL
2002 2001

COMPANY NO. OF NO. OF
SHARES $ SHARES $

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of
$0.05 each 2,000,000,000 $100,000,000 2,000,000,000 $100,000,000

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 January 1,113,539,875 55,676,994 1,125,758,875 56,287,944
Shares repurchased

and cancelled - - (12,219,000) (610,950)
At 31 December 1,113,539,875 $ 55,676,994 1,113,539,875 $ 55,676,994

During the last financial year, under the share buy-back mandate approved by shareholders, the Company repurchased
12,219,000 ordinary shares of $0.05 each at an average price of $0.098 per share, amounting to a total cost, including
brokerage, of $1,195,448. The repurchase transactions were financed by internally generated funds.
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22. RESERVES
GROUP COMPANY

2002 2001 2002 2001
$ $ $ $

Capital reserves
- Share premium 29,356,168 29,356,168 29,356,168 29,356,168
- Share premium arising

from issue of ordinary
shares by an associate 350,487 350,487 - -

- Goodwill on consolidation
arising from acquisition
of subsidiaries (375,894) (375,894) - -

- Reserve arising from
bonus shares issued
by a subsidiary 2,500,000 2,500,000 - -

- Capital redemption
reserve 610,950 610,950 610,950 610,950

32,441,711 32,441,711 29,967,118 29,967,118
Currency translation

reserve (780,087) (3,385,356) - -
Accumulated profits 38,679,430 44,569,439 15,392,553 16,270,375

$70,341,054 $73,625,794 $45,359,671 $46,237,493

The application of the share premium account is governed by sections 69 – 69F of the Companies Act, Chapter 50.

The currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations that are not integral to the operation of the Company.

23. REVENUE
GROUP COMPANY

2002 2001 2002 2001
$ $ $ $

Sale of goods 126,162,104 140,640,992 70,905,012 86,421,190
Revenue from hotel

operations 15,209,748 15,089,849 - -
Revenue from construction

contracts 13,757,773 5,846,231 - -
$155,129,625 $161,577,072 $70,905,012 $86,421,190
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24. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

The following items have been included in arriving at profit from operations:

GROUP COMPANY
NOTE 2002 2001 2002 2001

$ $ $ $

Dividend income (gross):
- subsidiaries - - (2,583,200) -
- quoted equity

investments (5,381) (6,553) (5,381) (6,553)
Exchange loss/(gain) 458,411 305,159 (140,092) 25,292
Gain on disposal of

quoted debt securities (11,000) - (11,000) -
Bad debts recovered (trade) (53,088) (15,586) (45,824) -
Gain on disposal of

property, plant
and equipment (122,292) (70,222) (65,701) (10,123)

Gain on dilution of interest
in a subsidiary (4,282) - - -

(Gain)/loss on de-registration
of subsidiaries (15,669) - 36,121 -

Interest income:
- debt securities (314,445) (414,616) (314,445) (282,981)
- fixed deposits (647,363) (597,406) (479,508) (565,027)
- subsidiaries - - - (122,232)
Allowance made for:
- inventories 11 115,462 69,009 112,000 -
- doubtful receivables,

net (trade) 14 269,524 60,907 73,901 31,525
Auditors’ remuneration:
- auditors of the Company

- current year 127,300 128,800 65,000 65,000
- underprovision in

respect of prior years 300 525 - 4,325
- other auditors 35,098 36,724 - -
Non-audit fees paid to

auditors of the Company 15,045 12,250 9,140 4,000
Bad debts written off (trade) 18,561 28,004 - -
Directors’ fees:
- directors of the Company 304,573 310,000 210,000 190,000
- other directors 37,499 17,975 - -
Directors’ remuneration*:
- directors of the Company 2,709,529 2,679,114 2,709,529 2,679,114
- other directors 492,462 531,413 - -
Consultancy fees paid to

a director of a subsidiary 10,975 11,693 - -
Professional fees paid to firms

in which a director of a
subsidiary is a member 667,676 618,953 - -

Inventories written off 44,605 72,430 - -
Property, plant and

equipment written off 12,054 613 - -
Operating lease expenses 1,114,285 1,173,325 810,239 930,545
Contribution to defined

contribution plans* 1,083,353 1,099,918 358,165 386,594

Number of employees
at 31 December 716 721 87 96

* Included in staff costs
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25. FINANCE COSTS
GROUP COMPANY

2002 2001 2002 2001
$ $ $ $

Interest paid and payable to:
- banks 2,319,027 2,190,536 2,158 122
- others 32,459 38,621 5,945 8,013

$2,351,486 $  2,229,157 $  8,103 $ 8,135

26. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
GROUP COMPANY

2002 2001 2002 2001
$ $ $ $

CURRENT TAX EXPENSE

Current year 1,986,646 1,865,231 850,000 912,800
Under/(over) provided

in prior years 165,891 (9,111) - 12,600

2,152,537 1,856,120 850,000 925,400
DEFERRED TAX EXPENSE

Movement in temporary
differences (164,189) 176,231 417,629 (94,580)

Effect of reduction in tax rates 311,665 128,578 (12,203) (6,620)
Benefit of tax losses recognised (275,003) - - -
Benefit of temporary differences

recognised (970,428) (380,803) - -

(1,097,955) (75,994) 405,426 (101,200)
1,054,582 1,780,126 1,255,426 824,200

Share of tax of associates 890,918 1,438,435 - -
$1,945,500 $ 3,218,561 $ 1,255,426 $ 824,200

RECONCILIATION OF EFFECTIVE TAX RATE
GROUP COMPANY

2002 2001 2002 2001
$ $ $ $

(Loss)/ profit before tax (1,552,954) 9,669,082 2,549,006 3,167,252
Income tax using Singapore

tax rate at 22% (2001: 24.5%) (341,650) 2,368,925 560,781 775,977
Effect of reduction in tax rates 311,665 128,578 (12,203) (6,620)
Tax rebate - (62,140)   - (46,191)
Effect of different tax rates in

other countries 81,834 120,623   - -
Income not subject to tax (4,959,439) (845,892)   - (12,863)

Balance carried forward (4,907,590) 1,710,094 548,578 710,303
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26. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)
GROUP COMPANY

2002 2001 2002 2001
$ $ $ $

Balance brought forward (4,907,590) 1,710,094 548,578 710,303

Expenses not deductible for
tax purposes 7,274,853 461,859 598,383 129,971

Utilisation of previously
unrecognised temporary
differences (970,428) (380,803) - -

Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (275,003) - - -

Share of tax of associates 890,918 1,438,475 - -
Under/(over) provided in

prior years 165,891 (9,111) - 12,600
Others (233,141) (1,953) 108,465 (28,674)

$ 1,945,500 $ 3,218,561 $ 1,255,426 $ 824,200

27. BASIC (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
GROUP

2002 2001
$ $

Basic (loss)/ earnings per share is based on:
Net (loss)/ profit for the year $ (3,718,607) $ 6,268,669

No. of shares No. of shares
Weighted average number of shares outstanding

during the year 1,113,539,875 1,122,712,445

28. DIVIDENDS

After the balance sheet date, the Directors proposed the following dividends. These dividends have not been provided for.

2002 2001
$ $

Final dividend proposed of 0.25 cents (2001: 0.25 cents)
per share less tax at 22% (2001:22%) 2,171,402 2,171,402

Special dividend proposed of 0.15 cents (2001: Nil)
per share less tax at 22% (2001:22%) 1,302,841 -

$ 3,474,243 $ 2,171,402
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29. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Disposals

During the financial year, the Group completed the de-registration of the following subsidiaries, A & P Marketing Pte Ltd,
Fortune Bright Investment Pte Ltd, Tipex Investment Pte Ltd and Fortune Bakery Singapore Pte Ltd.

These companies have a total net deficit in tangible assets of $15,669 at 31 December 2001, which has been recognised as
the net gain on de-registration of subsidiaries by the Group.

(b) Effect of Disposals
GROUP

2002 2001
$ $

NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS DISPOSED
Other receivables 2,222 -
Trade and other payables (17,891) -

Gain on de-registration of subsidiaries $ (15,669) $ -

30. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Company if the Company has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Company and the party are subject to common control or common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

During the financial year, there were the following significant transactions carried out by the Group with its associates in the
normal course of business on terms agreed between the parties:

2002 2001
$ $

Management fee 169,018 389,942
Rental and conservancy charges - 44,217
Interest received 12,938 148,727
Purchases 663,603 534,786

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES - UNSECURED

Company
(a) As at 31 December 2002, the Company has issued unsecured guarantees to banks in respect of credit facilities granted to its

subsidiaries of $44,364,465 (2001: $42,014,211) and to its associates of $19,663,900 (2001: $20,949,600).

(b) The Company has given formal undertakings, which are unsecured, to provide financial support to certain of its subsidiaries.
As at 31 December 2002, the deficits in shareholders’ funds of these subsidiaries amounted to $9,807,874 (2001:
$9,926,216).
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31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES - UNSECURED  (CONT’D)

Group
A legal claim was filed by an architect against a subsidiary and its associate (the “companies”) in Malaysia for payment of
architectural services rendered by the architect and another party (the “architects”). The claim totalled to RM148,711 and
USD338,794, (equivalent to a total of $655,474 at 31 December 2002) plus interest and costs.

Pursuant to a summary judgement of the High Court in 1999, the associate issued a bank guarantee amounting to RM798,643
(equivalent to $365,219 at 31 December 2002) in favour of the architects, which was subsequently called upon by
architects.

The companies have appealed against the summary judgement and are seeking for the refund of the sum of RM798,643
drawn by the architects on the bank guarantee, and damages. The directors are of the opinion that there is sufficient evidence
to support the appeal and that the claim has no merit to justify such a quantum. Accordingly, no provision for any liability
arising from the claim has been made in the financial statements.

32. COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2002, the Group and the Company have the following commitments:

(a) Future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable operating lease commitments as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
2002 2001 2002 2001

$ $ $ $

Payable:
- Within 1 year 1,090,053 825,732 795,593 809,058
- After 1 year but within

5 years 5,224,466 5,360,915 3,977,964 5,333,323
- After 5 years 40,075,871 27,966,816 14,585,868 27,966,816

$ 46,390,390 $34,153,463 $19,359,425 $34,109,197

Included in the commitments for future minimum lease payments is the leasehold building owned by the Company built on
land subject to a 60-year lease commencing from 1 May 1967. The annual land rent payable under the lease agreement,
which is subject to review every five years, is $795,593 (2001: $795,593).

(b) Notional amount and fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts entered into for hedging anticipated future currency
transactions and which are not recognised in the balance sheet as follows:

 2002  2001
NOTIONAL FAIR NOTIONAL FAIR
AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE

GROUP $ $ $ $

Forward foreign exchange
contracts $ 612,960 $ (6,060) $ 325,653 $ 792

COMPANY

Forward foreign exchange
contracts $ 88,600 $ (1,900) $ - $ -

The fair value is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Group. The Group has a system of controls in place to create an
acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of managing the risks. The management
continually monitors the Group’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is
achieved.

Credit risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. Cash is placed with financial institutions which are
regulated.

At the balance sheet date, there was no significant concentration of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheets.

Foreign currency risk

The Group incurs foreign currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than
Singapore dollars. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Australian dollars, Malaysian Ringgit and Renminbi.

There is no formal hedging policy with respect to foreign exchange exposure. Exposure to currency risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group endeavours to keep the net exposure at an acceptable level. Where necessary, the Group uses
forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s investment portfolio, which
includes debt securities with active secondary or resale markets to ensure portfolio liquidity, and debt obligations.

The Group adopts a policy of constantly monitoring movements in interest rates. Presently, it does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the
Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Fair values

Recognised financial instruments

The aggregate fair values of financial assets and liabilities which are not carried at fair value in the balance sheets as at 31
December are as follows:

2002  2001
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR

GROUP AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE
$ $ $ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Quoted debt securities 2,994,620 3,204,000 12,994,620 12,725,000
Quoted equity securities 8,561,794 6,709,506 - -

$ 11,556,414 $ 9,913,506 $12,994,620 $12,725,000

COMPANY

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Quoted debt securities $ 2,994,620 $ 3,204,000 $12,994,620 $12,725,000

The fair value of quoted securities is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

The fair value of balances with related parties have not been computed as the timing of the expected cash flows of these
balances cannot be reasonably determined. However, the Group does not anticipate that the carrying amounts recorded at the
balance sheet date would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.

Financial assets carried in excess of fair value

Equity securities held for the long-term are carried in excess of their net fair value as at 31 December 2002. The equity
securities have not been written down to the net fair value because management intends to hold them for the long-term and
thereby expects to recover the full carrying amount of the securities.

Unrecognised financial instruments

The fair values of foreign exchange contracts are based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date and disclosed in
Note 32(b).
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34. SEGMENT INFORMATION

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical segments. The primary format,
business segments, is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.

Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise income-earnings assets and revenue, borrowings
and expenses and corporate assets and expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected to be
used for more than one period.

Business Segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

Consumer and industrial products : Supply of provisions and household consumer products, retail franchising,
manufacture and sale of soya bean products.

Leisure and recreational : Operation of a club and entertainment facility.

Healthcare : Construction of hospital turnkey projects and provision of health care consultancy
and hospital management services.

Property development : Development of properties.

Hotel : Operation of a hotel comprising accomodation and related services and food,
beverage and banqueting operations.

Geographical Segments

The Group’s business is managed in four principal geographical areas, namely, Singapore, Malaysia, China and Australia.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical location of
customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.
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34. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(a) Business Segments
CONSUMER AND

INDUSTRIAL LEISURE AND PROPERTY

GROUP PRODUCTS RECREATIONAL HEALTHCARE DEVELOPMENT HOTEL CONSOLIDATED

$ $ $ $ $ $

REVENUE AND EXPENSES

2002

Total revenue 126,162,104 - 13,757,773 - 15,209,748 155,129,625

Segment results 7,203,763 (567,940) (1,216,182) (1,269,492) 2,293,952 6,444,101

Unallocated results (1,181,784)

Profit from operations 5,262,317

Finance costs (2,351,486)

Loss on disposal of investment in an associate (6,909,590)

Share of profit of associates 2,445,805

Taxation (1,945,500)

Minority interests (220,153)

Net loss for the year $ (3,718,607)

2001

Total revenue 140,640,992          -   5,846,231          -  15,089,849 161,577,072

Segment results     7,558,042     (63,166)    (808,363)    (461,498)    1,699,779 7,924,794

Unallocated results 243,534

Profit from operations 8,168,328

Finance costs (2,229,157)

Share of profit of associates 3,729,911

Taxation (3,218,561)

Minority interests (181,852)

Net profit for the year $ 6,268,669

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

2002

Segment assets 90,450,144 19,063,078 17,115,639 6,511,541 32,777,355 165,917,757

Investments in associates 737,503          - 4,058,613 3,688,550 3,478,927 11,963,593

91,187,647 19,063,078 21,174,252 10,200,091  36,256,282 177,881,350

Unallocated assets 21,199,940

Total assets $ 199,081,290

Segment liabilities 21,247,404 2,028,045 5,928,054 1,527,839 1,744,798 32,476,140

Unallocated liabilities 37,134,329

Total liabilities $ 69,610,469

2001

Segment assets 84,109,767 4,900,369 8,695,014 7,162,091 33,561,018 138,428,259

Investments in associates 290,518 32,767,427 4,100,226 3,901,890 3,698,734 44,758,795

84,400,285 37,667,796 12,795,240 11,063,981 37,259,752 183,187,054

Unallocated assets 13,184,704

Total assets $ 196,371,758

Segment liabilities 22,865,823 1,708,131 1,938,893 1,527,666 1,697,984 29,738,497

Unallocated liabilities 34,120,001

Total liabilities $ 63,858,498
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34. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(a) Business Segments (cont’d)
CONSUMER AND

INDUSTRIAL LEISURE AND PROPERTY

GROUP PRODUCTS RECREATIONAL HEALTHCARE DEVELOPMENT HOTEL CONSOLIDATED

$ $ $ $ $ $

NON-CASH EXPENSES

2002

Amortisation - - - - - -

Depreciation of and

impairment loss

on property, plant

and equipment 2,223,625 296,474 141,604 685,950 1,043,645 4,391,298

$ 2,223,625 $ 296,474 $ 141,604 $ 685,950 $ 1,043,645 $ 4,391,298

2001

Amortisation 25,321 - - - - 25,321

Depreciation of and

impairment loss

on property, plant

and equipment 2,240,300 619,298 123,356 487,200 1,037,086 4,507,240

$ 2,265,621 $ 619,298 $ 123,356 $ 487,200 $ 1,037,086 $ 4,532,651

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

2002

Capital expenditure $ 1,955,745 $ 4,872 $ 61,962 $  - $ 92,823 $ 2,115,402

2001

Capital expenditure $ 1,483,890 $  - $ 394,527 $ - $ 142,658 $ 2,021,075

(b) Geographical Segments
SINGAPORE MALAYSIA CHINA AUSTRALIA CONSOLIDATED

$ $ $ $ $

2002

Total revenue $105,066,455 $34,853,422 $ - $15,209,748 $155,129,625

Segment assets $ 93,574,260 $36,678,493 $2,887,649 $32,777,355 $165,917,757

Capital expenditure $ 1,438,240 $ 579,467 $ 4,872 $ 92,823 $ 2,115,402

2001

Total revenue $122,568,114 $23,919,109 $  - $15,089,849 $161,577,072

Segment assets $ 73,102,685 $28,448,487 $3,316,069 $33,561,018 $138,428,259

Capital expenditure $ 809,523 $ 1,068,894 $  - $ 142,658 $ 2,021,075
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1. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Company’s directors receiving remuneration from the Group:

No. of Directors
Remuneration band: 2002 2001

$500,001 to $750,000   3* 4
$250,001 to $500,000 1 0
$250,000 and below 6 3

10 7

* Two of the directors resigned during the financial year and the remaining director resigned on 1 February 2003.

2. PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

Description of properties held by the Group is as follows:

Location Description Tenure

348 Jalan Boon Lay, Two-storey warehouse with annexed office 60-year lease
Singapore 619529 block used by the Group both for its

operations and for rental income

348 Jalan Boon Lay, Single-storey factory used by a subsidiary 60-year lease
Singapore 619529 for its operations

7 Tong Jiang Street Hotel with club and restaurant facilities 15-year lease
Daoli District, Harbin,
China

116-120 North A 182 suite hotel constructed with a ground Freehold
Terrace Adelaide floor, 7 upper floors and a basement
South Australia

Lot MLO 1101, Factory used by a subsidiary for its Freehold
Kampong Bukit operations
Kulai, Johor,
Malaysia

Lot 2537, Parit Abdul Factories used by subsidiaries for their Freehold
Rahman Benut, operations
82200 Pontian, Johor,
Malaysia

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
for the year ended 31 December 2002
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2. PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (CONT’D)

Location Description Tenure

Lot MLO 1102 and Vacant land Freehold
1103, Mukim of
Sedenak, Kulai,
Malaysia

Lot 249, GPP 4841 Vacant land Freehold
Town Area XXI District
of Melaka Tengah,
Melaka,
Malaysia

GM 9382 Lot 2185 and Vacant land Freehold
GM 9383 Lot 2186
Kuala Kuantan,
Malaysia

Wilayah Pengembangan Vacant land 30-year lease
Sekupang
Patam, Batam,
Indonesia

PTD 63419 HSD 248337, Vacant land Freehold
PTD 63421 HSD 248339 and
PTD 63422 HSD 248340
Mukim of Pulai District
of Johore Bahru, Malaysia

3. INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

There are no interested person transactions entered into during the financial year.

4. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There are no material contracts entered into between the Company and its subsidiaries involving the interests of the chief
executive officer or each director of the Company during the financial year.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
for the year ended 31 December 2002
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Authorised Share Capital : S$100,000,000
Issued and Fully Paid Capital : S$55,676,994
Class of Shares : Ordinary Shares of S$0.05 each with equal voting rights

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS as at 17 April 2003

NUMBER OF SHARES HELD SHAREHOLDING
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS DIRECT INTEREST DEEMED INTEREST PERCENTAGE %

Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles - 305,691,790 27.45
Chinaview International Limited - 305,691,790 27.45
Galaxyway Investments Limited - 305,691,790 27.45
ITC Corporation Limited - 305,691,790 27.45
ITC Investment Holdings Limited - 305,691,790 27.45
Mankar Assets Limited - 305,691,790 27.45
Famex Investment Limited - 305,691,790 27.45
Hanny Holdings Limited - 305,691,790 27.45
Hanny Magnetics (B.V.I.) Limited - 305,691,790 27.45
Rich Life Holdings Pte Ltd 305,691,790 - 27.45

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDING as at 21 January 2003

HOLDINGS IN THE NAME OF HOLDINGS IN WHICH
DIRECTORS OR IN WHICH DIRECTORS  THE DIRECTOR IS DEEMED TO

DIRECTOR HAVE A DIRECT INTEREST HAVE AN INTEREST

Tan Ling San 7,375,875 -
Foo Der Rong 2,087,500 -
S Chandra Das - 637,500

SHAREHOLDING STATISTICS
17 April 2003
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS as at 17 April 2003

RANGE OF SHAREHOLDINGS NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS % NO. OF SHARES %

1 - 999 32 0.39 15,575 0.00
1,000 - 10,000 2,797 34.40 20,671,432 1.86
10,001 - 1,000,000 5,220 64.20 336,523,011 30.22
1,000,001 and above 82 1.01 756,329,857 67.92

8,131 100.00 1,113,539,875 100.00

SHAREHOLDING HELD IN HANDS OF PUBLIC

Based on information available to the Company as at 17 April 2003, 70.06% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company is
held by the public and therefore, Rule 723 of the Listing Manual issued by SGX-ST is complied with.

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS LIST - TOP 20 as at 17 April 2003

NO. NAME OF SHAREHOLDER NO. OF SHARES HELD %

1. Rich Life Holdings Pte Ltd 190,691,790 17.12
2. United Overseas Bank Nominees Pte Ltd 88,783,750 7.97
3. Southern Nominees (S) Sdn. Bhd. 78,000,000 7.01
4. DBS Nominees Pte Ltd 70,784,200 6.36
5. Oversea-Chinese Bank Nominees Pte Ltd 32,944,250 2.96
6. NTUC Fairprice Co-operative Ltd 25,000,000 2.25
7. HL Bank Nominees (S) Pte Ltd 24,087,000 2.16
8. Citibank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd 23,641,500 2.12
9. Raffles Nominees Pte Ltd 20,010,000 1.80
10. Kim Eng Ong Asia Securities Pte Ltd 18,066,000 1.62
11. Chong Ah Kau @ Chong Kar Kee 9,450,607 0.85
12. Tan Ling San 7,375,875 0.66
13. Hock Tong Bee Pte Ltd 6,789,750 0.61
14. Phillip Securities Pte Ltd 6,686,795 0.60
15. Tan Ze Hee 6,475,816 0.58
16. Tan Koon Poh 5,737,850 0.52
17. Ong Lay Chong 4,930,250 0.44
18. Overseas Union Bank Nominees Pte Ltd 4,570,000 0.41
19. Teo Piak Lim 4,415,400 0.40
20. OCBC Securities Private Ltd 4,153,000 0.37

632,593,833 56.81

SHAREHOLDING STATISTICS
17 April 2003
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Twenty-Ninth Annual General Meeting of Provisions Suppliers Corporation Limited will be held
at 348 Jalan Boon Lay Singapore 619529 on Friday, 30 May 2003 at 11:00 a.m. to transact the following businesses:-

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2002 and the Auditors’
Report thereon. [Resolution 1]

2. To declare a Final and a Special Dividend of 0.25 cents and 0.15 cents per share, respectively, less 22% income tax for the year
ended 31 December 2002. [Resolution 2]

3. To re-elect the following Directors retiring in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association :-
(a) Mr Tao Yeoh Chi [Resolution 3(a)]
(b) Mr Allan Yap [Resolution 3(b)]
(c) Mr Chan Yeuk Wai [Resolution 3(c)]
(d) Mr Richard Lui Siu Tsuen [Resolution 3(d)]
(e) Mr Chua Keng Hiang [Resolution 3(e)]

Note: Mr Tao Yeoh Chi and Mr Chua Keng Hiang will, upon re-election as Directors of the Company, remain as members of the
Audit Committee and will be considered independent directors.

4. To re-appoint KPMG as Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration. [Resolution 4]

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees of S$308,335/- for the year ended 31 December 2002 (2001 : S$190,000/-).
[Resolution 5]

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without amendments as ordinary resolution:-
[Resolution 6]

“That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 (the “Act”) and the listing rules of The Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”), authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to issue ordinary
shares in the Company (whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise) at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for
such purposes and to such persons as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit provided that:-

(a)the aggregate number of ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to this Resolution does not exceed 50 per cent (50%) of the
issued share capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph (b) below), of which the aggregate
number of ordinary shares to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to shareholders of the Company does not exceed 20 per
cent (20%) of the issued share capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph (b) below);

(b)subject to such manner of calculation as may be prescribed by the SGX-ST, for the purpose of determining the aggregate
number of ordinary shares that may be issued under sub-paragraph (a) above, the percentage of issued share capital shall be
based on the issued share capital of the Company at the time of this Resolution is passed, after adjusting for:-

(i) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or share options on issue at the time
this Resolution is passed; and

(ii) any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of shares; and

(c)unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, the authority conferred by this Resolution shall continue in
force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the date by which the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier.”

And to transact any other business which may be properly transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
PROVISIONS SUPPLIERS CORPORATION LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE)



P r o v i s i o n  S u p p l i e r s  C o r p o r a t i o n  L i m i t e d

81:

NOTICE OF BOOKS CLOSURE DATE

NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN that the Share Transfer Books and Register of Members of the Company will be closed on 9 June
2003, for the purpose of determining the Members’ entitlements to the dividends to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company to be held on 30 May 2003.

Duly completed registered transfers in respect of shares in the Company received up to the close of business at 5.00 p.m. on 6
June 2003 by the Company’s Share Registrar, M & C Services Private Limited, will be registered to determine Members’ entitle-
ments to such dividends. Members whose Securities Accounts with The Central Depository (Pte) Ltd are credited with shares in the
Company as at 5.00 p.m. on 6 June 2003 will be entitled to such proposed dividends.

The proposed dividends, if approved at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 19 June 2003.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

ROBSON LEE TECK LENG
BOON CHUAN BOK

Company Secretaries

6 May 2003

Singapore

NOTES :-
1) A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead.
2) A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
3) The instrument appointing a proxy shall, in the case of an individual, be signed by the appointor or his attorney, and in case of

a corporation shall be either under its common seal or signed by its attorney or an officer on behalf of the corporation.
4) The instrument appointing a proxy, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at 348 Jalan Boon Lay, Singapore

619529, not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting.

EXPLANATORY NOTES:-
1) The above item 5, if approved, will sanction the payment of Directors’ Fees for the year ended 31 December 2002.
2) Resolution 6, if passed, is to empower the Directors to issue ordinary shares in the capital of the Company up to an amount not

exceeding in total 50 per cent (50%) of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company with a sub-limit of 20 per cent (20%)
of shares issued other than on a pro rata basis to shareholders. For the purpose of determining the aggregate number of ordinary
shares that may be issued, the percentage of issued share capital shall be based on the issued share capital of the Company at
the time that Resolution 6 is passed, after adjusting for (a) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of any convertible
securities or share options on issue at the time that Resolution 6 is passed, and (b) any subsequent consolidation or
subdivision of shares.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
PROVISIONS SUPPLIERS CORPORATION LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE)
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Name Address NRIC/ Proportion of
Passport Number Shareholdings (%)

and/or (delete as appropriate)

as my/our proxy/proxies to vote for me/us on my/our behalf and, if necessary, to demand a poll, at the Twenty-Ninth Annual
General Meeting of PROVISIONS SUPPLIERS CORPORATION LIMITED to be held at 348, Jalan Boon Lay, Singapore 619529
on Friday, 30 May 2003 at 11:00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

(Please indicate with an "X" in the spaces provided whether you wish your vote(s) to be cast for or against the Ordinary Resolutions
as set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting. In the absence of specific directions, the proxy/proxies will vote or abstain
as he/they may think fit, as he/they will on any other matter arising at the Annual General Meeting.)

NO. ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST
ORDINARY BUSINESS :

1. Adoption of Reports and Accounts

2. Declaration of Final and Special Dividends

3. Re-election of Directors :

(a) Mr Tao Yeoh Chi

(b) Mr Allan Yap

(c) Mr Chan Yeuk Wai

(d) Mr Richard Liu Siu Tsuen

(e) Mr Chua Keng Hiang

4. Re-appointment of Auditors

SPECIAL BUSINESS :
5. Approval of Directors' Fees

6. Authority for Directors to issue shares

Dated this day of 2003.

Signature(s) of member(s) or Common Seal

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF

PROXY FORM - ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
PROVISIONS SUPPLIERS CORPORATION LIMITED

(INCORPORATED IN THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE)

IMPORTANT:

1. For investors who have used their CPF monies to
buy Provisions Suppliers Corporation Limited shares,
this Report is forwarded to them at the request of
their CPF Approved Nominees and is sent solely
FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF investors
and shall be ineffective for all intents and purposes
if used or purported to be used by them.

I/We

of

being a member/members of PROVISIONS SUPPLIERS CORPORATION LIMITED

hereby appoint

Total Number of Shares Held:

✃



NOTES :-
1. Please insert the total number of shares held by you. If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register

(as defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore), you should insert that number of shares. If

you have shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert that number of shares. If you have

shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and shares registered in your name in the Register of Members,

you should insert the aggregate number of shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and registered in your

name in the Register of Members. If no number is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to

relate to all the shares held by you.

2 A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint one or two proxies,

whether a member or not, to attend and vote instead of him.

3 Where a member appoints two proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his shareholding

(expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be represented by each proxy.

4 The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at 348 Jalan

Boon Lay, Singapore 619529, not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for the Twenty-Ninth Annual

General Meeting.

5 The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised

in writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either

under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

6 A corporation which is a member may authorise by a resolution of its directors or other governing body such person as

it thinks fit to act as its representative at the Twenty-Ninth Annual General Meeting, in accordance with Section 179 of the

Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore.

GENERAL:-
The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed

or illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified

in the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies. In addition, in the case of shares entered in the Depository Register, the Company

may reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have shares

entered against his name in the Depository Register as at forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the Twenty-

Ninth Annual General Meeting, as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.

PROXY FORM - ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
PROVISIONS SUPPLIERS CORPORATION LIMITED

(INCORPORATED IN THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE)




